
 

ADDENDUM #1 
 

December 9, 2022  

RFI Title: Privileged Access Management 

Human Resources Management System Owner: County of Wake – Melissa England, Procurement 

RFI Bid No.:   #22-102 

  

The following items provide answers to questions that were submitted for RFI #22-102.  Wake County answers are 
in blue. 
 

1. Is there a preference for on-prem physical/virtual appliances, cloud hosted appliances, or a full SaaS 
solution? 

The intent of this RFI is to identify solution capabilities to assist in further defining platform needs 
and requirements.  Wake County will consider both on-premise and cloud solutions.  

2. How many primary locations/datacenters are there? 

Wake County maintains a primary and backup data center. 

3. Do you have a list of platform types for which you need privileged access governed?  (Password 
check-out/management/rotation, session monitoring/recording) 

The intent of this RFI is to identify solution capabilities to assist in further defining platform needs 
and requirements. For the purpose of budgetary pricing, please assume Windows, Unix, Linux, and 
Mac. 

4. How many total privileged systems/assets are to be managed? 

This information is not currently available.  The intent of this RFI is to identify solution capabilities to 
assist in further defining platform needs and requirements.  For the purpose of budgetary pricing, 
please assume 100 privileged accounts. 

5. How many total privileged accounts are to be managed? 

This information is not currently available.  The intent of this RFI is to identify solution capabilities to 
assist in further defining platform needs and requirements. For the purpose of budgetary pricing, 
please assume 100 privileged accounts. 

6. How many PAM users will there be?  This should include privileged account users, as well as 
administrators/approvers/reviewers/auditors working with the solution. 



This information is not currently available.  The intent of this RFI is to identify solution capabilities to 
assist in further defining platform needs and requirements. For the purpose of budgetary pricing, 
please assume 100 privileged accounts. 

7. Roughly how many simultaneous CLI (SSH/Telnet) sessions are anticipated? 

This information is not currently available.  The intent of this RFI is to identify solution capabilities to 
assist in further defining platform needs and requirements. For the purpose of budgetary pricing, 
please assume 10 simultaneous sessions. 

8. Roughly how many simultaneous graphical (RDP/VNC/ICA) sessions are anticipated? 

This information is not currently available.  The intent of this RFI is to identify solution capabilities to 
assist in further defining platform needs and requirements. For the purpose of budgetary pricing, 
please assume 10 simultaneous sessions. 

9. What is your primary User Store (Active Directory, Azure AD, other) 

Active Directory and Azure AD. 

10. What functionality is needed around the access cards in relation to the MFA? 

The following detail is outlined in the Functional Requirements:  The PAM solution should provide 
the ability to reauthenticate users using methods other than password entry. Messages should be 
configurable to allow authentication options, including passwords, smart cards, algorithm-based 
response codes and designated user override. When messages are requesting credentials, they 
should be presented on the secure endpoint interface for enhanced security. 

11. Would you like Linux/Unix/Mac authentication to be tied to Active Directory?  If Yes, how many 
Linux, Unix, Mac systems would you want to be able to log into AD? 

Yes.  Assume less than 50 Linux, Unix, and Mac devices. 

12. For how many Windows workstations / endpoints are you interested in delegation management? 

For budgetary purposes, please assume 7000 Windows workstations. 

13. Are the Windows systems for which you are interested in delegation management part of a native 
Active Directory (not Azure AD) domain? Are they primarily on-network and able to communicate 
with the domain controller for GPO updates etc? 

Windows systems are part of a native Active Directory domain.  Due to hybrid work environments, 
assume that 50% of devices are not directly connected to the Wake County network on a frequent 
basis. 

14. Do you have a preferred MFA solution or would you like One Identity to provide one? 

The intent of this RFI is to identify solution capabilities to assist in further defining platform needs 
and requirements.  Please outline what MFA solutions you are capable of integrating with. 

15. Is an extension past the holidays a possibility? 

The intent of this RFI is to identify solution capabilities to assist in further defining platform needs 
and requirements.  We do not expect to extend the deadline for responses at this time. 



16. Please provide clarification of what is being asked/required on this item.  An example of the 
problem and the solution to the problem in a real-world scenario would be appreciated. Item #76- 
Credential Management- Disconnected system and privileged accounts-Disconnected system and 
privileged accounts: The ability to manage privileged credentials for systems when disconnected 
from the network, such as Windows, Linux/UNIX, OSX and other platforms. No information must be 
passed or stored between the primary PAM solution and disconnected endpoints.  

In order to support users in various hybrid work environments and devices operating in air-gapped 
networks, it should be possible to manage local privileged accounts, regardless of connectivity to the 
corporate network. 

17. In order to produce a quote, the following information will need to be provided: 
a. Number of Named Administrators 
b. How many managed assets would you need the password managed on? 
c. Number of assets that external vendors or remote admin would need to access? 
d. Number of Unix/Linux devices in scope? 

Please use the following assumptions for budgetary pricing: 

a. 100 Named Administrators 
b. 7000 managed assets 
c. 50 assets for external vendor remote access 
d. 50 Unix/Linux devices 

 
18. Can you please advise if we might be able to email our responses instead of physically mailing?  

In lieu of hard copies, proposers may submit an email response to the following email address 
bids@wakegov.com and enter RFI #22-102 in the subject line.  By virtue of submitting an electronic 
response, you agree to the following:  

 Response to be submitted to: bids@wakegov.com   
 Acceptable file types are: pdf, word, excel, and like. Zip files will be rejected.  
 All files will be submitted for virus scan. Any files containing such will be rejected with no automatic 

re-submittal.  
 Files submitted are to be directly related to the subject RFI. No promotional type material will be 

considered.  
 Vendors should submit their responses via email to the mailbox listed above.  
 File size limits are limited, the default maximum size supported for the entire email would be 35mb.  
 Any failure of a file to be received, for any reason, will be totally a vendor / submitter responsibility. 

 
19. Does Wake County have an existing privileged access management platform or product? 

Wake County does not currently utilize a privileged access management platform. 

20. What is that existing privileged access management platform or product?    

Wake County does not currently utilize a privileged access management platform. 

21. When does the County anticipate an RFP/RFQ release?   

Wake County does not have an anticipated date for a subsequent RFP/RFQ as this will be dependent 
upon funding approvals. 


